
 
 

 

Queries about the agenda?  Need a different format? 
 

Contact Jemma West – Tel: 01303 853369 
Email: committee@folkestone-hythe.gov.uk or download from our 

website 
www.folkestone-hythe.gov.uk 

 

Date of Publication:  Tuesday, 12 November 2019 

 

Agenda 
 

Meeting: Cabinet 

Date: 20 November 2019 

Time: 5.00 pm 

Place: Council Chamber - Civic Centre Folkestone 

  

To: All members of the Cabinet 
 

 All Councillors for information 

  
 

 The cabinet will consider the matters listed below on the date and at the 
time and place shown above.  The meeting will be open to the press and 
public. 
 
This meeting will be webcast live to the council’s website at 
https://folkestone-hythe.public-i.tv/core/portal/home.  Although unlikely, no 
guarantee can be made that Members of the public in attendance will not 
appear in the webcast footage. It is therefore recommended that anyone 
with an objection to being filmed does not enter the council chamber. 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence  
 

2.   Declarations of Interest (Pages 3 - 4) 
 

 Members of the Council should declare any interests which fall under the 
following categories: 
 
a)  disclosable pecuniary interests (DPI); 
b)  other significant interests (OSI); 
c)  voluntary announcements of other interests. 
 

3.   Proposed changes to ICT service provision (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

 This report relates to the provision of a future ICT service and the end of 
the current outsourced ICT contract. Due to changes in technology that are 
driving digital transformation the 10 year ICT outsourced service contract 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

mailto:committee@folkestone-hythe.gov.uk
http://www.folkestone-hythe.gov.uk/
https://folkestone-hythe.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


Cabinet - 20 November 2019 

that was entered into in 2012 is becoming unfit for purpose in a number of 
ways as it was designed to support a working model of a largely static 
workforce based in a number of fixed offices. The contract does not take 
account of the range of devices that are increasingly being deployed and 
the uptake of the use of mobile working to drive efficiency are changing the 
requirements for supporting a modern workforce, nor does it take account 
of technologies such as cloud computing. 
 
The ICT contractor, Sopra Steria, have approached the council to discuss 
possibility of a mutually agreed early termination of the contract as they 
are operating at a loss. Officers believe that there are advantages to 
agreeing to this request in that it will allow the ICT service to be reshaped 
to fit with the council’s wider transformation plans and provide the 
necessary support moving forwards as new technology is adopted. 
 

4.   Otterpool Park - additional capital funding (Pages 13 - 28) 
 

 This report sets out the history of the Otterpool Park project and its 
rationale, the work done to date, the financial implications and returns, the 
challenges in delivering the project and makes the case for additional 
capital funding to enable to project to progress. 
 

 
 
 

Page 2



Declarations of Interest 
 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
 
Where a Member has a new or registered DPI in a matter under consideration they must 
disclose that they have an interest and, unless the Monitoring Officer has agreed in advance 
that the DPI is a 'Sensitive Interest', explain the nature of that interest at the meeting. The  
Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any 
matter in which they have declared a DPI and must not participate in any discussion of, or 
vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation permitting them to 
do so. If during the consideration of any item a Member becomes aware that they have a 
DPI in the matter they should declare the interest immediately and, subject to any 
dispensations, withdraw from the meeting. 
 
Other Significant Interest (OSI) 
 
Where a Member is declaring an OSI they must also disclose the interest and explain the 
nature of the interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the 
commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a OSI and 
must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been 
granted a dispensation to do so or the meeting is one at which members of the public are 
permitted to speak for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving 
evidence relating to the matter. In the latter case, the Member may only participate on the 
same basis as a member of the public and cannot participate in any discussion of, or vote 
taken on, the matter and must withdraw from the meeting in accordance with the Council's 
procedure rules. 
 
Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests (VAOI) 
 
Where a Member does not have either a DPI or OSI but is of the opinion that for 
transparency reasons alone s/he should make an announcement in respect of a matter 
under consideration, they can make a VAOI. A Member declaring a VAOI may still remain at 
the meeting and vote on the matter under consideration. 
 
Note to the Code: 
Situations in which a Member may wish to make a VAOI include membership of outside 
bodies that have made representations on agenda items; where a Member knows a person 
involved, but does not have a close association with that person; or where an item would 
affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but not his/her 
financial position. It should be emphasised that an effect on the financial position of a 
Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc OR an application made by a Member, 
relative, close associate, employer, etc would both probably constitute either an OSI or in 
some cases a DPI. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

          
 

 
 

Report Number C/19/33 

 
 

 
To:  Cabinet     
Date:  20 November 2019 
Status:  Key Decision   
Responsible Officer: Tim Madden 
Cabinet Member: Cllr Ian Meyers 
 
SUBJECT:   PROPOSED CHANGES TO ICT SERVICE DELIVERY 
 
SUMMARY: This report relates to the provision of a future ICT service and the 
end of the current outsourced ICT contract. Due to changes in technology that are 
driving digital transformation the 10 year ICT outsourced service contract that was 
entered into in 2012 is becoming unfit for purpose in a number of ways as it was 
designed to support a working model of a largely static workforce based in a 
number of fixed offices. The contract does not take account of the range of 
devices that are increasingly being deployed and the uptake of the use of mobile 
working to drive efficiency are changing the requirements for supporting a modern 
workforce, nor does it take account of technologies such as cloud computing. 
 
The ICT contractor, Sopra Steria, have approached the council to discuss 
possibility of a mutually agreed early termination of the contract as they are 
operating at a loss. Officers believe that there are advantages to agreeing to this 
request in that it will allow the ICT service to be reshaped to fit with the council’s 
wider transformation plans and provide the necessary support moving forwards as 
new technology is adopted. 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
This reports highlights a number of issues with the current long term ICT 
outsourced contract and the advantages to the Council of agreeing to the 
contractors request to consider a mutually agreed early termination two 
years prior to the natural end date of March 2022. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
1. To receive and note report C/19/33. 
2. To agree to the mutual termination of the current, 10 year ICT contract 

prior to the natural end date of March 2022 so that the ICT Service can 
be brought back in house enabling a new support model to be created 
that better fits to the Councils requirements to support new technology 
and digital transformation. 

3. To delegate authority to the Corporate Director – Customers, Support 
and Specialist Services in consultation with the Cabinet Portfolio 

This Report will be made 
public on 12 November 
2019 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Holder for Digital Transformation and Customer Services to agree the 
ending of the contract at a time which is appropriate for the Council. 

 

Page 6



1. BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Prior to December 2000 the Council’s ICT service was provided by Ashford 

Borough Council however at the time that adoption of ICT was on the 
increase, personal computers were appearing on every desk and paper 
based systems were being replaced by computerised business applications. 
It was felt that ICT support would be better placed under the direct control of 
the council and an in house service was created. For 12 years the in house 
team introduced and maintained many new systems and received awards 
for its development work under the e-government programme.  
  

1.2 In 2010 the council looked at alternative ways to provide a number of its 
services, including the ICT service, in order to reduce costs. A number of 
models for ICT service delivery were considered including, reducing the in 
house team, shared services with other local authorities and outsourcing to 
the private sector. Following an options appraisal it was decided that the 
latter was the preferred option. This lead to a fairly resource intensive 18 
month contract procurement exercise which was signed off by council in 
December 2011 with a 10 year contract being awarded to the current 
supplier, Steria (now Sopra Steria) with a start date  of 1st April 2012. 
 

1.3 The in house ICT team transferred under TUPE arrangements into Steria 
while the council retained ownership of all hardware and licence assets and 
retained control over ICT procurement and budgets. Steria moved some of 
the support that was previously provided by the in house team to other areas 
of their business, for example the first line support helpdesk was moved to a 
call centre at Warrington. 
 

1.4 The contract that was entered into in 2012 did successfully create some 
savings and helped realise some key benefits at the time in that it 
underpinned the Council’s Ways of Working project that introduced 
(amongst others): 

 Home working and hot desking which rationalised the Civic Centre 
office space.  

 Electronic document management replaced many hundreds of 
thousands of paper records.  

 Improved web based services for customers.  
 

1.5 More recently however it has been increasingly difficult to apply the contract 
as intended in 2012 due to changes in technology, changes to the supplier’s 
business model and changes to the way the council wants to work in future. 
Sopra Steria have asked the Council to consider a mutual termination of the 
contract as that may be beneficial to both sides. 

 
2. Request from Contractor for early termination 
 
 
2.1 Sopra Steria have made the request to consider an early termination for a 

number of reasons: 
 

2.1.1 Firstly they claim they are operating the contract at a loss which is 
unsustainable for them. This is probably not unusual for many companies 

Page 7



providing contracted services to the public sector in the current economic 
climate who in the past would have expected to generate additional income 
to supplement the base charges during the term of the contract from 
undertaking new projects and rationalising elements of the service. 
However, new projects are undertaken less frequently than previously may 
have been the case, and at the time of the outsourcing many cost savings 
from ICT had already been achieved.  

 
2.1.2 Secondly, since Steria merged with Sopra in 2014 they have made 
changes to their operating model and they have made a wider business 
decision to withdraw from the outsourced services market across a number 
of small accounts in favour of providing much larger centralised contracts 
that don’t rely on having staff located in small pockets at remote sites.   
 
2.1.3 Thirdly, changes in technology and ways of working are increasingly 
highlighting difficulties in applying a contract that was designed around a 
largely static, office based workforce who accessed computing resources 
and legacy applications hosted in the Civic Centre on a limited number of 
desk based computers. The uptake of mobile and flexible working on a wider 
range of laptop, tablet and smartphone devices all connecting via cloud 
technology that is replacing legacy systems is fast becoming the norm and 
this is reflected in the council’s forward looking ICT strategy 2018 - 2023 
which is now being delivered. This rapid change in technology is increasingly 
difficult for the supplier to support within the constraints of the contract. 

 
2.2      Sopra Steria had previously suggested that some parts of the service, such 

as the onsite team could be brought back in house while other parts, such 
as the remote service desk, could remain with Sopra Steria. In practice it is 
difficult to see how this would work without considerable re-working of the 
contract. Sopra Steria had also previously suggested centralising some 
functions like network and server support across a number of client sites and 
providing them as a completely remote service however this model increases 
the risk to the Council of the service becoming less responsive than it 
currently is through a dilution of skills, lack of knowledge of the local 
infrastructure and an inability to programme in changes when it suits the 
council.  

 
3. Advantages to the council of agreeing to early termination 
 
3.1 As the council aims to transform itself with more digitally enabled working and 

improved customer self-service it seems an opportune time to consider Sopra 
Steria’s request to mutually terminate the contract and bringing the ICT service 
back in-house enabling it to be re-shaped so that it is fit for purpose to meet the 
support the councils digital transformation aspirations. There are a number of 
reasons why the council would consider an early termination as an advantage: 

 
3.1.1 Avoid contract run down. During the procurement of the service it was 
recognised that a 10 year contract was the maximum viable length for an ICT 
outsourcing contract and with hindsight 7 years may have been a better option. 
Irrespective of the difficulties of applying the current contract to modern 
technology, any long contract will lose its momentum in the final years 
especially if the supplier knows they will not be re-tendering. With less than 30 

Page 8



months to run on the current contract planning for the future of ICT service 
provision is something that the Council would have to start in 2020 ready for an 
exit in 2022 in any event, so a long run down of the contract can be avoided. 
 

3.1.2 Changing support models. According to a recent report by the Local 
Government IT professional body SocITM, amongst local authorities 
outsourcing ICT to the private sector is on the decline because of the lack of 
flexibility to meet changing needs in such contracts, the inability for contractors 
to make sufficient profit margin and the rise 4 or 5 years ago of shared services 
operated between groups of authorities. It also points to the fact that those 
shared service arrangements that were in vogue are now at risk of breaking up 
as parties to the agreements may not always want to follow the same technology 
model in the long term, perceive them to be too inflexible in terms of service 
delivery or are not returning value for money for all partners. An in house core 
team providing stability and retaining key knowledge, backed up by 3rd party 
contracts for specialist skills that are not easily available, would offer the best 
ICT support model for the council. 
 

3.1.3 Ability to shape the service. The council’s digital agenda and ICT 

strategy of moving services to the cloud will require a different type of ICT 

service in the future, with a reduction in the need to support on premise 

infrastructure but with an increased need to manage and liaise with external 

suppliers at a technical level. This model would be best served by a strong 

cadre of in house ICT staff (including support for Systems and the Digital 

agenda) backed up by 3rd party specialists where additional expertise is 

required. Partnership working within Kent Connects and Kent Public Service 

Network would continue as long as it remains a cost effective way of providing 

connectivity to the internet and the Public Services network and various layers 

of Internet security as it currently does.  

 

3.1.4 More efficient use of resources. The current cost of the Sopra Steria 

contract is £376k per annum. This is broadly comparable to the costs (£394k) 

of bringing the service back in house as is, without taking into consideration 

any savings that could be made through transforming the service. Better 

service provision and resilience for developing and supporting technical 

solutions can be achieved by merging ICT and the internal Systems Support 

teams into a new ICT/ Digital service as part of the current transformation. 

This would maximise the efficient use of resources available, though some 

reskilling to support new technology will be required. As the technology model 

described in the ICT strategy of reducing on premise infrastructure in favour of 

cloud services and by centralising business applications is delivered, savings 

in support costs will be realised over the medium (3 – 5 years) to long term (5 

years +). 

 

3.1.5 Certainty of costs. Since the acquisition of Steria by Sopra their 

business model has changed and they now seek to recharge for some 

elements that it could be debated were originally intended to be part of the 

contract, this is generally what is referred to as “Business as Usual” projects. 

Prior to the acquisition Steria operated more in the spirit of collaboration that 

Page 9



was intended under the contract rather than strictly what was defined and 

there was greater flexibility for the inclusion of certain works. Furthermore, 

there has been a tendency recently for Sopra Steria to propose prices for 

additional work (that the council considers part of the contract) that appear to 

be higher than the market rate or what the council could potentially obtained 

elsewhere outside the contract. This may be because Sopra Steria are running 

the contract at a loss and could be seeking to offset costs on of the day to day 

service other works. The council could obtain better value for money 

elsewhere for some of these works if it chose to do so but with the current 

contractual arrangement that could cause further dispute over responsibility for 

support thereafter. 

 

3.1.6 Ability to take advantage of new technology. As the technology 

moves further away from the model that was in place at the start of the 

contract, it is getting increasingly difficult to clearly define what is or isn’t a 

legitimate project for the supplier to undertake within contract costs and what 

could be chargeable work. This has led to some fairly lengthy discussions 

which have detracted from getting on and actually providing the service in 

some cases. Cloud technology is not covered in the contract neither is the 

growing demand for different types of user devices or mobile working. Some 

projects the council may wish to undertake, such as a move to Office 365, 

would require considerable negotiation and this is probably not a worthwhile 

use of time and resources at this point in the contract.  

3.1.7 Flexibility and resilience. As Sopra Steria is running the service on 

below zero profit margins (in their view) they are reluctant to bring in 

additional, centralised resources to progress some works with the expediency 

required resulting in a backlog of maintenance projects, some systems are 

approaching end of life and it is difficult to have any additional works 

programmed in. The backlog problem not helped by the fact the onsite team 

seen a reduction in resources or have received little or no training in the last 7 

years making it difficult for them to keep up to date with the technology they 

are now being asked to support.  A well-resourced and well-skilled in house 

team backed up by a number or smaller 3rd party contracts where necessary 

would be able to provide a more flexible and resilient service and would be 

better able to take advantage of any new technology the council wishes to 

deploy more quickly than is currently the case.  

3.1.8 Reduce risk through retaining key knowledge and skills. An early exit 
of the contract would reduce the risk of the council losing the key skills and 
knowledge of the councils systems held by the current on site team as those 
staff (some of whom have been with the council for nearly 20 years) would 
transfer back to the council under TUPE rules. The longer the contract runs 
towards the end date in 2022 the greater the risk of those staff with key skills 
being moved to other areas of Sopra Steria’s business and this could impact 
future service delivery post contract. 

3.1.9 Other benefits. When compared with an outsourced service provider 
whose primary concern is to generate a profit, the aim of an in house ICT team 
is to provide good service to internal customers while the council retains full 

Page 10



control of service delivery and resources are dedicated to the council rather 
than the contractor’s organisation. The workforce is generally more stable and 
loyal and take a greater degree of ownership of problems through to 
resolution. In house staff may also undertake extra duties with a degree of 
good will e.g. working late at short notice, and may be available to undertake 
other duties often at short notice (Civic emergency, elections etc.). 

 
4.0 Timescales  

 

4.1 Sopra Steria have suggested that the service could be returned within 6 weeks, 
however, it is the view of officers that this needs to be extended as pension and 
TUPE arrangements would take longer to arrange. The contract has a formal 
exit schedule which sets out a 6 month transition plan to allow for a technical, 
legal and HR issues to be dealt with adequately; 31st March 2020 may be a 
more realistic date depending on transfer arrangements. This would tie in neatly 
to the anniversary of the contract start and end dates. 

 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 

 
5.1 There are number of risks involved in running the contract to the current 

end date in March 2022. 
 

Perceived risk Seriousness Likelihood Preventative action 

Contractors’ 
support wanes 
as the end of 
the contract 
draws closer. 
This is common 
in long contracts 
where the 
contractor does 
not want to 
retender for the 
business 

medium medium 

Contract financial 
penalties can be 
applied for continued 
breach of service 
agreements however 
supplier may accept 
the penalties rather 
than try and improve 
the service 

Contractor 
increasing 
seeks to recover 
costs in other 
ways by 
disputing what 
is and isn’t 
covered by the 
contract 

medium high 

There have already 
been examples where 
the contractor disputes 
what is covered by the 
contract. Strong 
supplier management 
can help but it is 
increasingly difficult to 
match the contract 
model to the new 
technology the council 
wishes to use. 

ICT service 
does not meet  
the councils 
changing 
demands 

medium medium 

The supplier maintains 
a small number of staff 
on site to provide a 
level of day to day 
service which would be 

Page 11



moving forward 
as technical 
model described 
in the contract is 
outdated and 
does not 
support new 
working 
methods and 
digital 
transformation 

largely unaffected 
however the ability to 
deliver projects and 
updates to, and 
replacements of 
current systems would 
be affected. The 
council may have to 
pay to bring in 
expertise from 
elsewhere while 
continuing to pay 
Sopra Steria.  

 
7. LEGAL/FINANCIAL AND OTHER CONTROLS/POLICY MATTERS 
 
7.1 Legal Officer’s Comments  

 
External legal advice will need to be sought if the decision to terminate the 
contract early is agreed.  In addition to dealing with the termination of the 
contract, external legal advice may be required in relation to the pension 
and TUPE arrangements for the current Sopra Steria staff whose 
employment will be transferred to the Council  
 

7.2 Finance Officer’s Comments 
 

The additional annual cost of providing an in house ICT service is £16k, as 
detailed in section 3.1.4. This will be factored into the budget setting 
process for 20/21. Bringing the service back in house will provide the 
opportunity for future cost savings to be identified.  
 

7.3 Diversities and Equalities Implications  
 

 There are no equalities implications directly arising from this report 
 
8. CONTACT OFFICERS AND BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Councillors with any questions arising out of this report should contact the 
following officer prior to the meeting 

 
Steve Makin, ICT Contracts Officer 
Telephone:   01303 853541 
Email:  steve.makin@folkestone-hythe.gov.uk 

 

Page 12



 

 

          
 

 
 

Report Number C/19/23 

 
 

 
To:  Cabinet     
Date:  20 November 2019 
Status:  Key Decision   
Responsible Officer: John Bunnett, Corporate Director Place and 

Commercial 
Cabinet Member: Councillor David Monk, Leader of the Council 
 
SUBJECT: OTTERPOOL PARK – ADDITIONAL CAPITAL FUNDING 
 
SUMMARY:  This report sets out the history of the Otterpool Park project and its 
rationale, the work done to date, the financial implications and returns, the challenges 
in delivering the project and makes the case for additional capital funding to enable to 
project to progress. 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The Otterpool Park project has reached the stage where the Council must commit to 
additional funding in order that it can proceed.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
1. To receive and note report C/19/23. 
2. To recommend to Council that it makes available an additional one hundred 

million pounds to be drawn down over a period of up to five years to enable 
the Otterpool Park project to proceed; 

3. That decisions on spending the monies (if approved by council) are made 
by the decision maker, after having consulted the Otterpool Park Working 
Group, with decisions on expenditure in excess of £100,000 being subject 
to the approval of the majority of the Working Group members; and 

4. To approve the submission of the Garden Communities capacity fund bid 

to government for 2019/20. 

 

This Report will be made  
public on 12 November 
2019 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT AND BACKGROUND  
 
         Purpose of this report 
 
1.1 This report makes the case that cabinet should recommend to Council that 

additional capital funding of one hundred million pounds (£100M) be made 
available to enable the project, namely the development of Otterpool Park as a 
garden town to be delivered.  However it should be appreciated that this money 
we will drawn down over a period of up to five years.  A rough estimate is that a 
maximum of £40 million will be required in this or the next financial year, with 
the remainder over the next four or five years.  The amount actually drawn down 
may change and be dependant, amongst other factors, on contributions from 
third parties.   

 
1.2 In view of the large financial commitment it is considered appropriate to set out 

the history of the project, what has been done to date, the rationale and 
objectives of the project, the financial model and the potential risks and rewards. 

 
  

    Background 
 

1.3 On 17 December 2015 the Council purchased 144.472 hectares (357 acres) of 
farmland to the south east of the former Folkestone Racecourse for £5M. 

 
1.4 Since buying the land the cabinet and council have made several decisions 

regarding the Otterpool Park Garden Town project.  It is not intended to go 
through these decisions in detail but in essence they authorised the garden town 
proposal, the entering into a collaboration agreement with Cozumel Estates Ltd 
(see below), the work necessary to obtain planning permission and the 
acquisition of options to purchase land and outright purchase.  
 

1.5 As stated above the Council entered into a collaboration agreement with 
Cozumel Estates Ltd.  Cozumel, are the owners of the former racecourse at 
Folkestone.  This was last used as such on 18 December 2012.  In very general 
terms by the collaboration agreement the parties agreed to secure a 
comprehensive development of the site with a suitable financial rate of return.  
Both parties agreed to jointly fund the work necessary to obtain planning 
permission and to secure additional area of land for the development. 

 
1.6 Accordingly in furtherance of the agreement both parties have acquired land or 

obtained options to purchase land in the area. 
 

1.7 An application for planning application was made on 28 February 2019, this was 
validated on 18 March 2019.  The description of the development contained in 
the planning application is shown at appendix 1.   

 
1.8 On 16 March 2019 it was announced that Homes England, the government 

agency had purchased land adjoining Lympne.   
 

1.9 The spend to date is shown in the financial summary in the following 
paragraphs. 

Page 14



 
2.  FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF CURRENT SCHEME COMMITMENTS 
 
2.1  Since December 2015 the Council has approved capital budgets of £19m for 

the acquisition of land and property for the Otterpool Park development, 
including the original purchase of the farm. The capital expenditure is being met 
from prudential borrowing. To date approximately £11.1m has been spent with 
further planned expenditure estimated to be about £4.2m due over the next 
year, leaving an uncommitted budget of £3.7m to support the project. The 
expenditure to date is analysed below: 

 
 £’m 
Otterpool Farm (£5M plus SDLT, 
legal costs etc.) 

5.263 

Westenhanger Castle (£2.9M plus 
SDLT, legal costs etc.) 

3.378 

Residential Property (including 
SDLT) 

2.381 

Land Option Agreements 0.080 

Total Expenditure 11.102 

 

2.2    The Council is renting out the agricultural land it purchased and has let out         and 
is marketing for rent the residential properties it has acquired.  In addition it 
should be noted that it now has assets that will appreciate in value. 

 
2.3  The Council as joint promoter of the scheme with Cozumel Estates Ltd is 

forecast to incur total expenditure of almost £7m on the masterplanning phase 
of the development over a four year period to 31 March 2020. The cost is being 
met from the following sources: 

 
Masterplanning Funding £’m 
Cozumel Estates Limited 3.128 
Government Grants 3.226 
FHDC Otterpool Reserve 0.511 
FHDC Existing GF Budgets 0.091 

Total  6.956 

 
2.4  A capital budget of £350k to support exploring how to deliver the proposed 

development at Otterpool Park was approved by Council in February 2018 and 
this work is currently in progress. The capital expenditure is being met from 
prudential borrowing. 

 
2.5 Since 2016 the council has submitted bids for Garden Communities capacity 

funding to government (managed by Homes England). It has been successful 
in attracting £2.81 million to date. A further bid has been submitted for 2019/20 
for £1.973 million, and cabinet’s approval is sought for the submission of the 
bid. 

 
 
3. WHY BUILD AT OTTERPOOL PARK? 
 

Page 15



3.1 As will be seen from above the Council has already invested a lot of money in 
the site.  In addition it is devoting considerable resources in terms of member 
and officer time.  The project will be a long term one – probably of about thirty 
years’ duration, to put it another way there will be seven district wide elections, 
probably five general elections and several economic cycles before the Garden 
Town is complete.  Members and the public rightly question why the Council 
has set out on this course. 

 
3.2    The Garden Town project is seen as a unique opportunity to deliver the strategic 

objectives of the Corporate Plan relating to boosting the local economy, 
increasing job opportunities and providing more homes. It offers the opportunity 
to plan comprehensively to ensure all the right infrastructure and facilities are 
provided to meet the needs of new residents in a timely way, rather than lagging 
behind housing as is often the case. The project will provide over its lifetime 5 
primary schools, a secondary school, employment land, 50% green space and 
community facilities including a new health centre. It will provide 22% affordable 
homes (around 2000 homes in total) to help meet local housing need. It can 
deliver low carbon technologies and be designed in such a way as to encourage 
healthy and sustainable lifestyles. These principles are set out in the council’s 
Charter for Otterpool Park referred to below.  There is also a fiscal driver which 
is the main subject of this report.  However this section concentrates on why 
physically the site has been chosen. 

 
3.3  As an area for development Otterpool Park almost choses itself.  The locations 

for development particularly providing significant housing growth in Folkestone 
and Hythe appear are limited due to the statutory designation of the North 
Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and the coverage of Romney Marsh 
by flood zone restrictions. 

 
 3.4     While much of the housing growth in Folkestone and Hythe has previously been 

met at Hawkinge, and within the urban areas of Folkestone and Hythe, previous 
work on the Core Strategy along with that currently being undertaken in 
preparing the Places and Policies Local Plan suggests that the opportunities for 
further strategic level growth in these areas appear very limited. 

 
3.5       Using the latest household projections and affordability figures, the government 

methodology requires the provision in the district of:- 
 

 738 new homes a year on average over the period 2018/19 to 2036/37 (19 

years); or 

 

 13,285 additional homes in total. 

3.6      In addition to the planning policy position the land has significant advantages in 
terms of infrastructure.  Junction 11 of the M20 has available capacity with only 
minor alterations required to 2037 (signals to one arm and new road markings).   
In addition there is an existing railway station (Westenhanger) on the classic 
line to London with a junction to HS1 at Ashford International station.  This is 
not to say that there are no infrastructure constraints, how the cost of these 
infrastructure is met is shown in the financial model shown below. 

 

Page 16



3.7     It should be appreciated that without the Otterpool Park site the Council would 
have great difficulty in meeting its housing targets for the district and that if the 
Council were to decide not to pursue its interest in Otterpool Park and sell the 
land it is highly likely that the land would come forward for development 
promoted by its new owner.  The Council would be able to influence the 
development through its planning powers but would have a diminished role and 
would forego the benefits of land ownership   In other words whether or not the 
council owns the land at Otterpool Park is irrelevant to its future as a site for 
significant development.  The Council’s ownership is significant for other 
reasons explained below. 

 
4.   PRINCIPLES AND OBJECTIVES FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF 

OTTERPOOL PARK 
 
4.1    As will be seen from the decisions already taken much has been agreed 

regarding the shape of the project.  This is still very much a work in progress, 
although this section summarises what has been agreed to date there will be 
further additions and refinements.  

 
4.2    In addition it should be appreciated that the development of the town will evolve 

over time and it is not possible to anticipate all of the changes in the next thirty 
years.  By way of illustration if the project was coming to an end now this would 
mean that it had started in 1989; the world was a very different place then, for 
example there was little emphasis on recycling; electric vehicles were largely 
confined to milk floats (which have now more or less disappeared); the internet 
did not exist; the main method of communication over a distance being 'phone 
or the post. 

 
Framework Masterplan Principles 
 
4.3  The Framework Masterplan for the area (see minute 97, cabinet meeting 28 

March 2018) contains the following principles:- 
  

 Initial outline planning application for 8,500 homes;  

 Masterplan to show further expansion in later phases to approximately 
10,000 homes within the masterplan boundary;  

 Creation of around 15 hectares of employment space, contributing to a total 
of approximately 8,000 jobs;  

 Approximately 275 - 300 hectares of green infrastructure; and  

 Development to be delivered in a phased way.  

 
 
Otterpool Park Charter 
 
4.4  On 18 October 2017 (minute 48) cabinet approved a charter for Otterpool Park 

(https://www.folkestone-hythe.gov.uk/media/4649/A-Charter-for-Otterpool-
Park/pdf/A_Charter_for_Otterpool_Park.pdf) 

           which contains the following principles:- 
 

 Landscape-led masterplanning retaining and enhancing existing green and 
blue assets; 

Page 17

https://www.folkestone-hythe.gov.uk/media/4649/A-Charter-for-Otterpool-Park/pdf/A_Charter_for_Otterpool_Park.pdf
https://www.folkestone-hythe.gov.uk/media/4649/A-Charter-for-Otterpool-Park/pdf/A_Charter_for_Otterpool_Park.pdf


 Embracing and enhancing the natural landscape character, with a diverse 
range of green spaces; 

 Making best use of technologies in energy generation and conservation; 

 Prioritise walking, cycling and sustainable transport; 

 Promote healthy and sustainable environments; 

 Providing much needed new homes through a phased approach; 

 Maximising the visibility and enjoyment of local heritage assets; 

 Delivering distinctive high quality townscape with an appropriate mix of 
housing types and tenures; 

 Taking advantage of economies of scale and capturing land value; 

 Providing opportunities for self-build and custom build; and 

 Providing spaces for local food growing. 

 
4.5  It should be noted that although these principles have been approved by cabinet 

they have not been agreed by the Council’s partners. 
 
Long term stewardship principles 
 
4.6  Also on 18 October 2017 (minute 47) cabinet approved the principles for the 

long – term stewardship of community assets.  These are:- 
 

 The long term stewardship of open space, public realm (other than 
highways) and non-commercial community buildings will be the 
responsibility of a new body, i.e. not the Council.  

 The responsible body will form part of an approach to land value capture for 
Otterpool Park. Its income is likely to come from a range of sources including 
income generating assets, endowment and potentially service charges. 
However, income sources being reinvested in the new community will need 
to be balanced against income generation to the Council for investment in 
facilities and services for residents across the whole district.  

 While a trust or similar structure is likely to be the most suitable vehicle 
initially, potential future transition to a Town Council should be allowed for. 
The District Council should retain representation on the body.  

 The body will be community-led (as distinct from a privately run 
management company). It should also allow for future residents and 
businesses to shape the objectives and governance of the organisation, and 
to influence the design of new community facilities and spaces.  

 High quality management and maintenance over the long term is of 
fundamental importance when setting out the objectives of the stewardship 
body.  

 
Strategic Financial Objectives and definition of commercial return 
 
4.7  The following strategic financial objectives for the project have been agreed 

(cabinet 31 January 2018, minute 80):- 
 

 To commit to a long term involvement with the garden town to explore 
means of generating ongoing revenue streams from commercial, retail and 
residential elements of the development.  

Page 18



 To recognise the capital input and to release this value to ensure any 
borrowing costs are sustainable within the financial parameters of the 
council.  

 To optimise the resources from the garden town to provide a financial 
benefit for the whole district.  

 To work towards an ongoing financially sustainable model for the new town 
and to avoid, as far as possible, creating unfunded liabilities.  

 To work with private sector and public sector partners to maximise external 
funding in support of the project.  

 To consider at each critical decision point the future financial model with an 
emphasis on affordability for the council.  

 
4.8  The working definition of commercial return agreed is:- 
 
           “the value or profit available after meeting all the requirements of the initial outline 

planning application and future reserved matter approvals and further planning 
permissions”.  

 
Delivery of the Project 
 
4.9  As has been said above this is a long – term project.  Delivery of it will be 

complex and it is unlikely that it could be successfully delivered through the 
Council’s usual decision-making processes.  It is probable therefore that 
delivery will be via an arm’s length body in which the council will have shares. 

 
4.10 Accordingly it has been agreed in principle that the delivery vehicle will be 

through a corporate joint venture (Cabinet 31 January 2018, minute 80). Clearly 
Members will be advised as more detail is prepared and this will be subject to a 
separate decision. 

 
5  OTTERPOOL PARK AS AN INVESTMENT  
 
5.1  The above sections set out why the land at Otterpool Park is being developed 

– indeed why it would probably be developed even if the council did not own the 
land and the principle and objectives of the development. 

 
5.2  These sections however do not set out the potential financial benefits to the 

Council of developing the town.  Members are being asked to approve 
substantial expenditure and it is right that members understand the potential 
risks and rewards.  These are set out below. 

 
5.3  More generally however why should the Council contemplate this investment?  

There are many wider reasons to progress with this scheme.  However if 
considered solely from a financial angle, Local Government finance is under 
pressure.  The current Medium Term Financial Strategy indicates a cumulative 
shortfall in revenue funding to 2024/25 of around £4 million.  The Council must 
therefore seek other sources of funding to sustain its expenditure, meet its 
corporate objectives and set a year on year balanced budget position, working 
within acceptable levels of Council Tax for residents. 

 

Page 19



5.4  Whilst the Council will seek to make a profit from its investments and act in a 
commercial way it should be appreciated that the profits will be used in one way 
or the other to support public expenditure across the district. 

 
6.  THE FINANCIAL MODEL 
 
6.1 Due to the complexity and scale of this project it was felt entirely appropriate 

that external specialist advisors were appointed to support officers and 
members with the financial modelling.  The work undertaken at this stage has 
built on the principles & assumptions applied by the original architectural master 
& costing plan developed through the Collaboration Board with the assistance 
of Arcadis, Farrells, and Savills. Further work was commissioned earlier this 
year through BNP Paribas to create a phase by phase Master Developer and 
Residential Developer appraisals, and also update costs and sales values to 
reflect current market knowledge.  BNP Paribas have extensive experience 
worldwide and in the UK advising on property development and investment. 
They also have local market experience with a local office in Canterbury, where 
they are involved in both the sale of development land and residential homes. 
They are currently advising clients on Chilmington Green, Ashford, (5,750 
homes) Mountfield Canterbury (4,000 homes), Hoo Peninsula (12,500 homes) 
and Sittingbourne Urban Extension (750 homes).  
 

6.2 BNP primarily considered the feasibility of the role of master developer, 
investing in infrastructure and selling the resultant parcels of land. The analysis 
is based both on financial appraisals, and benchmarking with reference to 
contemporary market transactions. On that basis they concluded that there was 
significant opportunity for the Council to be involved in a scheme that will create 
a significant return, at least commensurate to the risk undertaken.  
 

6.3 Additionally the BNP work also points to significant additional opportunities for 
the Council in the future should it wish to invest in vertical development. 
 

6.4 All of these elements were inputs utilised by the financial consultants (PWC) to 
provide the following financial analysis.  This analysis has been developed to 
aid the Council’s understanding of the potential financial implications and risks 
of the project in its entirety.  The analysis provided provides the base case on 
the overall commercial viability of the project and its cashflows.  This model and 
analysis will not stand still, it will continue to evolve as the project does and as 
further information becomes available and decisions are taken.  Some key 
elements that will have an impact on the model moving forward include 
decisions on the delivery model (how this aligns to the Council’s risk appetite 
and key objectives), funding and grant contributions including clarity on the role 
of potential partners and continued clarification on infrastructure costs as the 
project gains outline planning permission and phases are designed in greater 
detail, providing increased certainty.  
 

6.5 That said, it is considered normal for such models to continue to evolve, the 
scale and very long term nature of this project mean this is inevitable, rather 
than should cause concern.   
 
The financial model is based upon: 
- The Council acquiring the required land;  

Page 20



- The Council acts as master developer of the scheme; 
- The Council undertakes prudential borrowing to fund the land acquisition 

and infrastructure costs; 
- The Council undertakes a competition to appoint developers who will have 

responsibility for the delivery of plots (& therefore transfer key market risks); 
and 

- The Council manage the developers’ obligations through contractual 
arrangements (such as S106 agreements). 

 
6.6 These are assumptions at this stage to enable the financial model to consider 

the overall commercial viability of the scheme and its cashflows.  The Council 
may choose for instance, through the appropriate decision making channels, to 
act as the developer / house builder for some plots to generate additional 
income for the Council.  At this stage the model focuses on the overall viability 
of the scheme rather than any of the many variations for delivery that would be 
possible, should that represent the correct reward / risk balance for the Council 
at that time. 
 

6.7 The Council’s financial consultants (PWC) have utilised the available inputs to 
create a month by month financial model to show the illustrative financial impact 
of the project.  In addition they have provided an inflationary assessment for the 
base case outputs.  They have arrived at an analysis of phased gross 
development values, costs and developer profit to determine an estimate of land 
payments in to the Council from the sale of serviced plots.  In addition they have 
considered the master developer position including analysis of cash flows and 
an illustrative debt profile.   
 

7.   WHAT THE FINANCIAL MODEL SAYS 
 
7.1 The model considers income from residential developer land payments and 

Section 106 contributions (which are offset by related costs).  Only minimal 
income from commercial land is anticipated at this stage of the modelling.  
Offsetting the inflows are the land, construction infrastructure costs as well as 
relevant fees.   
 

7.2 The outputs from the financial model were presented by PWC to the Otterpool 
Park Working Group during its November meeting.   
 

7.3 The analysis has identified the peak levels of debt and where they fall within the 
life of the project.  Peak debt (the highest level of debt during the cashflows of 
the project) is felt to be at an acceptable level for a project of this scale and 
could be met through the Council’s ability to undertake prudential borrowing. 
 

7.4 The modelling has assumed the project commences immediately, therefore 
2019 is year 1.  Obviously the timing of the project is largely dependent on 
obtaining planning permission.  The model identifies the break-even point for 
the project, which again is felt to be at an acceptable stage for this type of 
project. 
 

7.5 A key measure for larger capital schemes is the IRR (Internal Rate of Return),  
The IRR measures the attractiveness of a scheme to the investor.  The project 

Page 21



currently has an IRR post finance that would be acceptable to the market and 
therefore again supports the viability as a scheme.   
 

7.6 It should be noted that the Council may not choose to acquire the entirety of the 
scheme, or indeed it may not be available for purchase.  The analysis is focused 
on the scheme’s viability to enable the Council to take a decision if it wishes to 
proceed to the next stage with the project.  Future work will be required on 
delivery models, partnering arrangements etc.   

 
 
8.  WHY £100 MILLION? 
 
8.1  The figure is an estimate to allow the project to progress over the medium term.  

The capital programme does not operate on an annual cycle as the revenue 
budget determination does.  Instead the capital programme spans a rolling five 
year cycle as this decision will earmark funds available for draw-down over the 
term of the medium term capital programme.  The decision taken through this 
paper will enable the project to progress to the next stage, but specific decisions 
will still be required to draw down the funds by Cabinet, or relevant decision-
maker, at appropriate milestones.  Members will also want to receive updates 
as the project develops and regular reporting is anticipated. 

 
Examination in Public Core Strategy  
 
8.2  At the Examination in Public for the Core Strategy Review the Inspector will 

expect to see a Delivery Strategy that sets out how Otterpool Park will be built, 
including the programme of work for infrastructure. The inspector will also be 
looking for evidence of how the infrastructure and other development costs will 
be funded by the landowner partners, with a particular focus on the first phase 
of development.   

 
8.3  The infrastructure schedule prepared by consultant Arcadis sets out the 

essential infrastructure for the first phases of development where a funding 
commitment to progress the matters is needed including: 

 Waste Water Treatment Works;  

 new roads into the site;  

 upgrade to the power supply;  

 advance planting; and  

 early investment in the green spaces including the castle park.  
 
8.4 As noted above there is a significant infrastructure requirement.  The costs of 

infrastructure are not incurred merely in construction, there are costs in 
preparatory work (e.g. feasibility studies) before any spade is put in the ground.  
These costs will fall in the short term. The sum requested will also be used for 
necessary preparatory work on infrastructure requirements, e.g. feasibility 
studies as well as implementing some in part. 

 
8.5 The Council needs to show the commitment and it is considered that the monies 

requested, if approved, will satisfy the inspector on this point. 
 
8.6  In addition the sum authorised will provide sufficient financial headroom to 

enable the Council, if it sees fit, to acquire further land. 

Page 22



  
 
Delivery Vehicle 
 
8.7  Other immediate costs include establishing a delivery vehicle and team together 

with preparing reserved matters planning applications for early phases.   
 
9.  AUTHORISING THE EXPENDITURE 
 
9.1  If Council agree to make the monies available this merely gives permission to 

allocate the budget it does not (and indeed could not) direct the cabinet to make 
any particular decision on how to spend the money.  Provided the spending is 
within the budget it is for the decision-maker to decide when and how to expend 
the money. The decision-maker will vary depending on the level appropriate to 
that decision and could be cabinet (or in future a committee), delegation to 
officers or to a cabinet member for example.  

 
9.2  In view however of the importance of the project an Otterpool Park Working 

Group has been established, the decision-maker it is recommended will consult 
the Working Group, and where decisions are in excess of £100,000 they will be 
subject to the approval of the majority of the working group members.  This is 
reflected in the recommendations to this report. 

 
9.3 The Working Group met on 6 November for a briefing from BNP Paribas and 

PWC and discussion on the recommendations in this report. A clear majority 
voted to support making the financial facility of £100 million available to the 
council to progress the project.   

 
10.  FINANCING THE £100 MILLION 
 
10.1 The financial analysis undertaken focuses on the project as a whole, with the 

Council acting as master developer.  It assumes the Council would acquire the 
whole site and sell serviced plots to house builders.  The scheme will be funded 
through prudential borrowing.  The Council would not borrow in advance of 
need, and therefore it is not proposed that the council would borrow £100m 
immediately.  The decision provides the ability to add the facility to the medium 
term capital programme and for decisions to be taken regarding its use at the 
appropriate time, and for the Council to plan and manage its funds proactively 
over the term of the programme.  Taking the decision to add the facility to the 
programme also enable work to start on adjusting the authorised borrowing 
limits and prudential indicators set as well as developing a borrowing strategy 
in good time.   
 

10.2 The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting permits the capitalisation 
of borrowing costs for qualifying assets during the acquisition and construction 
phase of a scheme to get them ready for their intended use. The Code 
recognises this may be a ‘substantial period’ of time.  To do so the Council will 
need to adopt a capitalisation policy.  If the decision is taken to proceed with the 
scheme further work will be undertaken on this.  Local Authorities are also 
required to consider MRP (Minimum Revenue Provision).  The financial 
modelling undertaken does not factor this, as the delivery model remains 
undetermined.  However MRP is only applicable from the financial year after the 

Page 23



asset met from borrowing becomes operational.  The coming phase of Otterpool 
Park is anticipated to be classified as an Asset under Construction and therefore 
it is felt that until the infrastructure work of phase 1 is substantially completed 
no MRP provision is required to be made.  Therefore it is anticipated that, there 
would not be at this stage for this initial phase of work a capital financing impact 
to the General Fund Revenue position.  However in time as the project 
progresses financial benefits will need to be extracted from the scheme to pay 
down the cost of borrowing and contribute to the MRP provision.  The Council 
will need to obtain specific advice when considering the delivery model in the 
future to ensure it meets the financial objectives of the project.   
 

 
 
11.  EXTERNAL FUNDING 
 
11.1  The Council will work with potential partners to ensure that as much external 

funding is attracted to the project as possible. 
  

11.2  The modelling currently assumes no grant funding or contributions (apart from 
Section 106 contributions), this is a pessimistic view and unlikely to be the case, 
however a cautious approach to the modelling has been taken in this respect.   

 
 

 
  

Page 24



12. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 

Perceived risk 
 

Seriousness Likelihood Preventative action 

Viability of the 

project changes 

due to e.g. 

recession, 

changing land 

values and  

increased 

infrastructure or 

construction costs 

Medium High Costs and land values will 
inevitably change over the 
course of a 30 year project, so 
the financial modelling includes 
assumptions about fluctuating 
economic cycles and 
contingency for costs. The 
current model reflects a point in 
time and will need to be subject 
to continual review.  

Delay to project 

causes increase to 

borrowing  

Medium Medium Ensure contingency included 
within the modelling. While 
delays are hard to predict so are 
opportunities: e.g. for external 
funding applications and other 
income sources such as rents 
from housing and commercial 
land. The model currently takes 
a conservative view of this. 

Lack of skills and 

expertise in 

delivering large 

scale development  

High Low Recommend creation of delivery 
team, and appoint personnel 
with expertise in large scale 
development   

Wider objectives of 

creating attractive, 

green sustainable 

town with high 

quality range of 

housing not met 

Medium Low Ensure delivery team is 
adequately resourced with staff 
with the right skills.  Put controls 
in place for all developers, 
including design codes and sign 
off of all proposals by landowner 
delivery team. 
Ensure LPA adequately 
resourced to manage future 
applications and strategies 

 
 
 
13. LEGAL/FINANCIAL AND OTHER CONTROLS/POLICY MATTERS 
 
13.1    Legal Officer’s Comments (NE) 

 
There are no legal implications arising directly from this report but legal services 
will continue to seek external legal advice on any complex issues as and when 
needed. 

 
 
13.2 Finance Officer’s Comments 
 

Page 25



The financial analysis of the project is outlined within the body of the report.  
This reports seeks authority to earmark a facility for the project to draw down at 
key milestones throughout the term of the medium term capital programme.  
Individual decisions will need to be taken considered by the working group and 
then decision-makers at the appropriate times in order to draw down the funds.  
A financial appraisal of those individual decisions will need to be undertaken at 
that time to inform the decision being taken. 
   

13.3 Diversities and Equalities Implications (AJ) 
 

 No diversities and equalities issues arise out of this report. 
 
14. CONTACT OFFICERS AND BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Councillors with any questions arising out of this report should contact the 
following officer prior to the meeting 

 
Andy Jarrett, Chief Strategic Development Officer 
Telephone: 01303 853429   
Email: andy.jarrett@folkestone-hythe.gov.uk  

 
 The following background documents have been relied upon in the preparation 
of this report:  
 
Documents exempt, paragraph 3 of schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972  
 
Appendices: 
 

           Appendix 1 – description of planning application 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
            

Page 26



Appendix 1 – description of planning application 
 
Outline application, with all matters reserved, for a comprehensive residential led 
mixed use development comprising: Up to 8,500 residential homes including market 
and affordable homes; age restricted homes, assisted living homes, extra care 
facilities, care homes, sheltered housing and care villages; demolition of identified 
existing buildings; a range of community uses including primary and secondary 
schools, health centres and nursery facilities; retail and related uses; leisure facilities; 
business and commercial uses; open space and public realm; new planting and 
landscaping, and ecological enhancement works; sustainable urban drainage 
systems; utility and energy facilities and infrastructure; waste and waste water 
infrastructure and management facilities; vehicular bridge links; undercroft, surface 
and multi-storey car parking; creation of new vehicular and pedestrian accesses into 
the site, and creation of a new vehicular, pedestrian and cycle network within the site; 
improvements to the existing highway and local road network; lighting; engineering 
works, infrastructure and associated facilities; together with interim works or temporary 
structures required by the development and other associated works including 
temporary meanwhile uses. 
 
 
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Proposed changes to ICT service provision
	4 Otterpool Park - additional capital funding

